
 1 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Meeting Agenda 
 
 
 

Russ Baggerly, Director 
Mary Bergen, Director 
Bill Hicks, Director 

Pete Kaiser, Director 
James Word, Director 

 
CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

April 13, 2016 
3:00 P.M. 

Meeting to be held at the 
Oak View Park & Resource Center  

555 Mahoney Avenue 
Oak View, CA 93022 

 
Right to be heard:  Members of the public have a right to address the Board directly on any 
item of interest to the public which is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board.  The 
request to be heard should be made immediately before the Board's consideration of the item. 
No action shall be taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of  ¶54954.2 of the Government Code and except that 
members of a legislative body or its staff may briefly respond to statements made or questions 
posed by persons exercising their public testimony rights under section 54954.3 of the 
Government Code. 

 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
     
2. General Manager comments.   
 
3. Board of Director comments. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 

 
5. Consent Agenda 
 
 a. Minutes of March 23, 2016 Board Meeting. 

b. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Draper Construction 
in the amount of $20,860 to place concrete paving on the peninsula 
at the Water Adventure. 

c. Recommend approval of a purchase order to AAA Awnings Inc. in 
the amount of $29,390 to construct removable awning covers at 
several pump plant facilities. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Consent Agenda 
 
6. Bills 



 2 

 
7. Public Hearing to hear input regarding the proposed Resolution 

Determining the Public Interest and Necessity for Acquisition of the Real 
Property and Business Enterprise Owned by Golden State Water 
Company within Golden State’s Ojai Service Area.  

 
a. Conduct Public Hearing 

i. Letter from George Soneff of Manatt, Phelps & Phillips, LLP, 
Counsel for Golden State Water Company. 

 
b. Resolution Determining the Public Interest and Necessity for 

Acquisition of the Real Property and Business Enterprise Owned by 
Golden State Water Company within Golden State’s Ojai Service Area. 
 

  RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution 
 
8. Presentation of the 2016 Casitas Water Supply and Demand Status. 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Further discussion and consideration 
of the status memo for Board’s direction during an upcoming 
regular meeting of the Board. 

    
9. Information Items: 
 

a. Water Resources Committee Minutes. 
b. Recreation Committee Minutes. 
c. Executive Committee Minutes. 
d. Lake Casitas Recreation Area Report for February, 2016. 
e. Water Consumption Report. 
f. CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Cost Analysis. 
g. Investment Report. 
 

10. Adjournment  
 

If you require special accommodations for attendance at or participation in this meeting, 
please notify our office 24 hours in advance at (805) 649-2251, ext.  113.  (Govt. Code 
Section 54954.1 and 54954.2(a). 



 1 

Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District 
Board Meeting Held 

March 23, 2016 
 

 A meeting of the Board of Directors was held March 23, 2016 at the District office 
in Oak View, California. The meeting was called to order at 3:00 p.m. Directors 
Kaiser, Baggerly, Word, Hicks and Bergen were present.  Also present were 
Steve Wickstrum, General Manager, Rebekah Vieira, Clerk of the Board, and 
Attorney, John Mathews.  There were no staff members and three members of 
the public in attendance.  President Kaiser led the group in the flag salute. 
 
1. Public Comments (items not on the agenda – three minute limit). 
 

Mr. William Ulrich residing at 487 Gridley Rd, Ojai commented that the 
hour that the board holds their meetings and the lack of a video record renders it 
difficult for the public to access your record.  He then questioned the September 
2015 PowerPoint presentation by Raftellis and expressed concern that Raftellis 
was also a consultant to the City of Ventura, one of Casitas’ largest users.  He 
asked if this was vetted by counsel for conflict of interest.  He went on to state 
that he understands that Casitas is using their work product and that water 
agencies in California cannot charge above the cost of service.  My 
understanding is Casitas delivers to upper Ojai which is in excess of 1,200 feet. It 
stands to reason the cost to deliver that water is more than the cost to deliver to 
Casitas Springs.  Why is there no difference in water rates in the upper Ojai 
relative to Casitas Springs? He then questioned treatment cost and the water 
that is provided to ranchers and farmers is discounted under the rationale that 
they don’t need treated water. The consequence is an unsubstantiated water rate 
bordering on a gift.  Is this accurate and if so, why?  Based on a review of the 
financials a $2 million dollar loan was made to the recreation department and the 
recreation department has not retired the loan.  From an accounting perspective 
has this been addressed and audited?  Finally is Ms. Bergen the same as 
individual as the 4th largest purchaser of water?  Director Bergen responded yes.  
Mr. Ulrich asked if that has that been vetted by general counsel.   
 

Director Word commented that it would be best if all of those issues could 
be presented in writing.  Mr. Ulrich responded that if it were on video you could 
all review them.  He then stated he can generate it in a format that is much more 
legible than his notes.   
 
2. General Manager comments.   
 

Mr. Wickstrum informed the board of the advisory group meeting on April 
7th regarding the General Plan for the County of Ventura. 
 

Mr. Wickstrum then informed that board that Greg Romey, our Safety 
Manager started a week ago.  He then informed the board that on March 28th the 
Department of Fish and Wildlife will be conducting a tour of Matilija Dam down 
the estuary and of Robles. 
 
3. Board of Director comments. 



 2 

 
Director Hicks commented that he arrived back from his trip to Hawaii and 

mentioned that they seem to waste so much water there. 
 
4. Board of Director Verbal Reports on Meetings Attended. 
 

Director Word reported on his attendance at the AWA meeting.  Directors 
Baggerly and Hicks were also in attendance. 
 
5. Consent Agenda       ADOPTED 
 
 a. Minutes of March 9, 2016 Board Meeting. 
 
 On the motion of Director Word, seconded by Director Bergen, the 
Consent Agenda was adopted by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
6. Bills         APPROVED 
 

Director Hicks questioned payment to Tyler Technologies.  Mr. Wickstrum 
explained this is for programming changes for our accounting system to be able 
to implement the allocation program. 
 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Word, the bills were 
approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
7. Resolution to schedule a public hearing on April 13, 2016 to consider a 

resolution of necessity for the acquisition of Golden State Water 
Company’s Ojai water system.     ADOPTED 

 
 The Clerk of the Board expressed that the resolution has been changed to 
note the location of the meeting being held at the Oak View Park and Resource 
Center. 
 
 The Resolution was offered by Director Baggerly, seconded by Director 
Bergen and passed by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
  Resolution is numbered 16-05 



 3 

8. Recommend approval of a purchase order to Ford of Ventura for the 
purchase of a 2016 Ford 3/4 Ton Super Duty 4x4 truck. APPROVED 

 
 On the motion of Director Hicks, seconded by Director Baggerly, the 
above recommendation was approved by the following roll call vote: 
 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 
9. Verbal Update from the Matilija Dam Design Oversight Group meeting. 
 

Director Baggerly reported there were some interesting comments about 
what has been studied and from the people who went to DC.  Paul Jenkins and 
Matt Stecker checked on funding sources for federal money for a non-federal 
project.  There were graphs of the different possibilities for non-federal project 
removal of Matilija Dam.  Everyone was given dots to put their choices on the 
papers and the one that had the option of the two twelve foot holes were covered 
with dots.  We finally determined that this is what we would like to see.  Director 
Word asked where the funding would come from.  Mr. Wickstrum added that the 
true issue is there is not a lot of money from the Federal government.  They are 
tight on appropriations and opposed to the project.  The Army Corps of 
Engineers cannot contribute.  There is the potential for private sources for 
funding.  Mary Larson was on the phone and she let it be known that no one has 
applied for Fish & Wildlife funding for this project and it could be a source of 
funding.  There was discussion of formation of a funding subcommittee to look at 
these different ideas for funding.  Director Word added that the sediment is what 
concerns us the most. 
   
10. Information Items: 
 

a. Finance Committee Minutes. 
b. Personnel Committee Minutes. 
c. Executive Committee Minutes. 
d. Investment Report. 
 
On the motion of Director Baggerly, seconded by Director Hicks and 

passed, the information items were approved for filing by the following roll call 
vote: 

AYES: Directors: Bergen, Hicks, Word, Baggerly, Kaiser 
  NOES: Directors: None 
  ABSENT: Directors: None 
 

A member of the public residing at the corner of Apricot and Mahoney 
complained about a rut that she keeps cleaning out that she says is caused by 
our water flushing.  Mr. Wickstrum obtained her information and will look into the 
situation. 
 

President Kaiser moved the meeting to closed session at 3:26 p.m.   
 



 4 

11. Closed Session 
 

a. (Govt. Code Sec. 54957.6) 
Conference with Labor Negotiators:    
Agency Designated Representatives:  Rebekah Vieira, Draza Mrvichin 
Employee Organization: Supervisory & Professional, General Unit and 
Recreation Unit.  

 
President Kaiser moved the meeting back to open session at 3:56 p.m. 

with Mr. Mathews stating that the board met in closed session and there was no 
actionable item to report. 
 
12. Adjournment  
 

President Kaiser adjourned the meeting at 3:56 p.m. 
 
 
      _______________________ 
      James W. Word, Secretary 



 CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:  STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER 

FROM: NEIL COLE, PRINCIPAL CIVIL ENGINEER 

SUBJECT: AWARD CASITAS WATER ADVENTURE PAVING 

DATE:  MARCH 11, 2016 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to issue a 
Purchase Order Contract to Draper Construction for $20,860 to place concrete paving on the 
peninsula at the Water Adventure. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
The peninsula area at the lazy river feature of the Water Adventure was originally not open to 
the public.  Because of the need for additional seating areas, the peninsula has been opened 
up for public use. Three shade structures have been installed on the peninsula.  The turf areas 
under the shade structure do not stand up well to the pedestrian traffic and use water.  Also, 
the folks using this area tend to track in dirt and sand into the river.  To provide a better 
customer experience, concrete paving has been proposed to be placed under the shade 
structures. 
 
Casitas emailed the bid documents to seven contractors.  Three contractors submitted bids.  
The bid results are 
 

FIRM Concrete 
Paving 

Colored Concrete 
Pavers 

Draper Construction $20, 860 $34,200 
Travis Agricultural Construction $34,000 $48,030 
Tomar Construction $34,780 $42,780 
 
Draper Construction has successfully completed the Picnic No. 8 Roof project for Casitas and 
is currently completing the water playground repairs.  The work can be completed prior to the 
opening of the water adventure. 
 
The FY 2015-16 Capital Budget includes $14,700 for this work.  There are several Recreation 
Capital projects that will not use their entire budget, including the Ultra Violet installation.  The 
project is categorically exempt from CEQA per Section 15301.  
  



 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

TO:               STEVE WICKSTRUM, GENERAL MANAGER   
FROM:    ERIC BEHRENDT, E&M SUPERVISIOR  
SUBJECT: AWARD PUMP PLANT AWNINGS PROJECT 
DATE:  APRIL 4, 2016 
 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to issue a 
Purchase Order Contract to AAA Awnings Inc. for an amount of $29,390.00 to construct 
removable awning covers at several pump plant facilities.  

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 

Casitas issued a Notice Inviting Bids to have removable awning covers constructed 
above the motor and pump assemblies at several pump plant facilities. The intent is to 
install covers that will protect the motor assemblies from sun & heat in the summer and 
wind & rain in the winter. The awning covers are constructed to be removable to provide 
for maintenance of the pump and motor assemblies when necessary.  

The FY 2015-16 Capital Budget contains $34,000.00 for the work. 

All bids were over the budgeted amount. Per the specification a bid item was deleted 
and the bid amounts were recalculated to determine the lowest responsible and 
responsive bidder. The lowest responsible and responsive bidder was AAA Awning Inc. 
with a bid of $29,390.00. Casitas received (2) bids and the results are as follows: 

FIRM Original Bid Adjusted Bid 

AAA Awnings Inc. $34,990.00 $29,390.00 

NR Development Inc. $44,500.00 $37,550.00 

 













































112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Board of Directors of the 

Casitas Municipal Water District 

FROM: General Manager Steve Wickstrum and  
Special Counsel Jeffrey M. Oderman, Esq., Rutan & Tucker LLP 

DATE: April 7, 2016 

RE: April 13, 2016, Resolution of Necessity Hearing to Consider Authorization to 
Condemn Ojai Service Area/Property of Golden State Water Company 

1. BACKGROUND 

On April 13, 2016, the Board will be conducting a hearing to consider adoption of a 
resolution of necessity authorizing condemnation of the property owned by Golden State Water 
Company (“GSW”) within GSW’s Ojai service area.  The purpose of this report is to summarize 
the lengthy history leading up to the scheduled resolution of necessity hearing and to provide the 
Board with information relating to the findings and determinations the Board is required to make 
at the time a resolution of necessity is adopted. 

2. ISSUE 

Should the Board adopt the resolution of necessity? 

3. RECOMMENDATION 

Adopt the resolution entitled “A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Casitas 
Municipal Water District Determining the Public Interest and Necessity for Acquisition of the 
Real Property and Business Enterprise Owned by Golden State Water Company Within Golden 
State’s Ojai Service Area.”  The form of the resolution is attached to this Memorandum as 
Exhibit “A.” 

4. HISTORICAL SUMMARY 

This resolution of necessity hearing is the culmination of several years of effort on the 
part of the Ojai community to obtain local control over their water utility. 

In April 2011, a local citizens group, the Ojai Friends of Locally Owned Water (“Ojai 
FLOW”), approached the Casitas Municipal Water District (“CMWD”) with a request that 
CMWD initiate an acquisition/take-over of GSW’s Ojai water utility.  In its April 13, 2011, letter 
presented to the CMWD Board, Ojai FLOW stated that GSW’s Ojai customers had endured rate 
increases of over 75% since 2008 on top of rates already well above those in surrounding 
communities.  Ojai FLOW’s financial feasibility analysis (Richard Hajas, March 20, 2011), 
concluded it was feasible to reduce the cost of water to GSW’s Ojai customers by having 
CMWD acquire the system and replace GSW as the community’s water retailer. 



Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
April 7, 2016 
Page 2 
 
 

112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

In June 2011, Ojai FLOW presented petitions to CMWD signed by approximately 1,900 
of GSW’s Ojai customers requesting CMWD to consider the acquisition and give GSW’s Ojai 
service area customers the opportunity to vote on paying for the acquisition of GSW’s Ojai 
system.  The findings stated in the Ojai FLOW petition were that: 

• This action will not be a burden to the existing ratepayers of CMWD; 

• There will be no change in the place where Ojai Groundwater basin water will be 
used or change in where Lake Casitas water will be used;  

• There will be no increase in overall water demand; and  

• The average customer now served by GSW will realize a 10%-15% reduction in 
annual water costs in the first year. 

On January 29, 2013, CMWD’s Board of Directors considered taking the necessary 
actions to initiate the formation of a Community Facilities District (“CFD”) for the acquisition of 
the property and facilities owned/held by GSW in its Ojai service area.  At the conclusion of the 
discussion at that meeting the Board (1) approved CMWD’s Local Goals and Policies for Use of 
Mello-Roos Community Facilities District Act of 1982, (2) adopted a Resolution of Intention to 
Establish Community Facilities District No. 2013-1 (Ojai) and to Authorize the Levy of Special 
Taxes Therein, (3) adopted a Resolution Declaring the CMWD Board of Director’s Intention to 
Reimburse Expenditures from the Proceeds of Certain Community Facilities District Bond 
Obligations, and (4) set a public hearing for March 13, 2013, to consider and finally determine 
whether to approve the Rate and Method of Apportionment for the proposed CFD, approve the 
maximum special tax that can be imposed on properties within the boundaries of the CFD to 
support the acquisition of the GSW Ojai water system and fund capital improvements to that 
system, proceed with formation of the CFD, and schedule a special election at which the voters 
in the proposed CFD would have the opportunity to vote on whether or not to approve those 
actions. 

On March 13, 2013, the Board held a public hearing to consider initiating formation of 
the CFD.  At that time, the Board adopted 3 resolutions: (1) Resolution No. 13-12, establishing 
the CFD, listing the property and facilities to be acquired (the “Facilities”), and authorizing the 
levy of a special tax against properties within the boundaries of the CFD; (2) Resolution No. 13-
13, declaring the necessity to issue up to $60 million in CFD bonds to finance the cost of the 
Facilities, and submitting the question of incurring bond debt to an election; and (3) Resolution 
No. 13-14, calling a special election for August 27, 2013, on the question of issuing CFD bonds 
and levying CFD special taxes to pay the bond debt.  On April 10, 2013, the Board adopted its 
Resolution No. 13-16, which made slight revisions to the ballot language previously approved in 
Resolution No. 13-14. 



Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
April 7, 2016 
Page 3 
 
 

112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

On March 26, 2013, GSW filed a lawsuit in Ventura County Superior Court (Case No. 
56-2013-00433986-CU-WM-VTA) seeking to invalidate the actions taken by the CMWD Board 
in forming the CFD and seeking to enjoin and prohibit CMWD  from conducting the August 27, 
2013, special election, issuing the CFD bonds, and imposing CFD special taxes. 

The Ventura County Superior Court declined to take action on GSW’s lawsuit until after 
the CFD election was held. 

At the August 27, 2013, special election, an overwhelming 87.42% of the voters casting 
ballots voted in favor of the CFD. 

GSW’s challenge to the CFD then went to trial in early 2014.  The trial court ruled 
against GSW and in favor of CMWD on the merits of GSW’s legal challenge.  GSW appealed.  
On April 14, 2015, the Second District Court of Appeal issued its published opinion affirming 
the trial court’s ruling and denying GSW’s appeal.  (Golden State Water Company v. Casitas 
Municipal Water District (2015) 235 Cal.App.4th 1246.  A copy of the Court of Appeal’s opinion 
is attached as Exhibit “B” hereto.)  At the outset of its opinion (235 Cal.App.4th at 1249-1250), 
the Court of Appeal summarized the historical background in terms that bear directly upon the 
matters the Board is called upon to consider in this resolution of necessity hearing and strongly 
reaffirmed the underlying rationale for CMWD’s acquisition of GSW’s Ojai water utility: 

“Residents of Ojai, fed up with sky-high water bills, voted to oust 
appellant Golden State Water Company (Golden State), the private 
utility that monopolizes water service to their city, and replace it 
with respondent Casitas Municipal Water District (Casitas), a 
municipal utility that they hope will be more responsive to their 
concerns. . . . 

Golden State is unwilling to sell its business.  Casitas therefore plans 
to acquire the assets by eminent domain. . . . 

. . . . Golden State charges its customers rates that are more than 
double those charged by Casitas, and the disparity is growing.  Over 
a 20-year period, Golden State’s average annual rate increase was 
nearly twice that of Casitas. 

After several failed attempts to redress their grievances with the 
Public Utilities Commission (PUC), Golden State’s regulatory 
agency, local residents formed respondent Ojai Friends for Locally 
Owned Water (Ojai FLOW), an interest group ‘with the intent to 
declare independence from the economic tyranny of Golden State.’  



Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
April 7, 2016 
Page 4 
 
 

112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

Ojai FLOW, supported by Ojai’s city council and more than 1,900 
registered voters, petitioned Casitas to take over Golden State’s 
water service in Ojai. 

Casitas concluded that the Ojai community would benefit from 
having its water utility run by a locally controlled entity rather than 
an out-of-area corporation seeking to maximize profits for its 
owners.  Casitas’s board members live in the community and its 
customers have the right to participate in management decisions.  
Unlike Golden State, Casitas is subject to the Brown Act 
([Government Code] § 54950 et seq.) and the California Public 
Records Act (§ 6250 et seq.), and its meetings are conducted in 
public within its service area.  Under Proposition 218 (Cal. Const., 
art. XIII D), Casitas’s rates can be reduced by a majority of voters 
in its service area.  (Bighorn-Desert View Water Agency v. Verjil 
(2006) 39 Cal.4th 205, 217. . . .)  The only recourse for Golden 
State’s customers is to contend with the formal PUC process 
involving officials and staff located hundreds of miles away, 
whereas Casitas’s customers can express their wishes at the local 
level.” 

GSW subsequently filed a Petition for Review with the California Supreme Court which 
was denied on July 29, 2015. 

As GSW’s lawsuit was winding down, CMWD turned to the next step in the acquisition 
process – preparation of an appraisal of the fair market value of GSW’s Ojai water utility.  On 
July 6, 2015, shortly prior to the Supreme Court’s denial of review, Jeffrey Oderman, CMWD’s 
special counsel, wrote to GSW’s attorney, George Soneff, requesting GSW’s cooperation in 
identifying the assets in its Ojai service area “so we can better ensure that Casitas’s appraisal is 
as specific as possible and neither under-inclusive nor over-inclusive.”  (See Exhibit “C” hereto.)  
After receiving no response, Mr. Oderman followed up with an email on September 17, 2015.  
On September 24, 2015, GSW’s attorney provided a curt 1-sentence reply: “Golden State has no 
interest in participating in a pre-condemnation asset review process.”  (See Exhibit “D” hereto.) 

In September 2015, CMWD engaged Bruce W. Hull Associates, Inc., to perform an 
appraisal of GSW’s Ojai water utility.  In February 2016, CMWD received a narrative appraisal 
report from its appraisers that determined the fair market value of GSW’s Ojai water utility is 
$23,700,000 plus the discounted present value of the amount in GSW’s WRAM account as of 
the date of the transfer of the system by GSW to CMWD.  Based on this appraisal, which was 
reviewed in closed session with the Board, on February 26, 2016, Jeffrey M. Oderman, 
CMWD’s special legal counsel, extended to GSW an offer of just compensation in accordance 



Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
April 7, 2016 
Page 5 
 
 

112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

with applicable requirements of California law (in particular, Government Code § 7267.2).  (See 
Exhibit “E” attached hereto.) 

Subsequent efforts to negotiate a voluntary purchase/sale of GSW’s Ojai water utility 
have been unsuccessful.  (See, for example, Exhibit “F” attached hereto, a recent email exchange 
between the attorneys for CMWD and GSW, in which GSW’s attorney responded on March 7, 
2016, as follows: “Golden State’s Ojai water system is not for sale.  It is apparent that Casitas is 
preparing to attempt to take Golden State’s Ojai system by eminent domain, so at this time it 
appears that there is nothing to be negotiated.”) 

Accordingly, on March 25, 2016, CMWD’s special counsel provided GSW with formal 
notice of this April 13, 2016, resolution of necessity hearing.  (See Exhibit “G” attached hereto.)  
The adoption of a resolution of necessity is a prerequisite to the filing of an eminent domain 
action under California law.  (See Cal. Code of Civil Procedure §§ 1245.220-1245.240.) 

5. ANALYSIS 

A. The California Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) is Not Applicable. 

What is at issue is a change in the ownership of GSW’s existing Ojai water utility.  
CMWD is not proposing to acquire GSW’s Ojai water utility in order to construct or install any 
water system improvements or facilities or because of any intent to change the operation and 
management of the Ojai water system in a manner that will or may result, directly or indirectly, 
in any changes to the physical environment.  Accordingly, the adoption of a resolution of 
necessity is not a “project” within the meaning of the California Environmental Quality Act 
(“CEQA”) and requires no environmental review.  See, e.g., City of Agoura Hills v. LAFCO 
(1988) 198 Cal.App.3d 480, 494 (adoption of sphere of influence that is a mere change in 
potential political boundaries), Simi Valley Recreation & Park Dist. v. LAFCO (1975) 51 
Cal.App.3d 648, 666 (detachment of undeveloped land from a park district that did not change 
property’s land use designation), and Simons v. City of Los Angeles (1976) 63 Cal.App.3d 455, 
465 (city-proposed charter amendment to transfer park land, which had been used as a police 
training facility for 40 years, in circumstances in which existing use would continue). 

B. Certain Findings and Determinations Must be Made by the Board if 
Resolution of Necessity is Adopted; The Adequacy of CMWD’s Purchase 
Offer to GSW is Not An Issue to be Addressed at the Resolution of 
Necessity Hearing. 

Under Cal. Code of Civil Procedure § 1245.230, a resolution of necessity is required to 
contain certain specified information, including “[a] declaration that the governing body of the 
public entity has found and determined each of the following: 



Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
April 7, 2016 
Page 6 
 
 

112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

(1) The public interest and necessity require the proposed project. 

(2) The proposed project is planned or located in the manner that will be most 
compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury. 

(3) The property described in the resolution is necessary for the proposed project. 

(4) That either the offer required by Section 7267.2 of the Government Code has been 
made to the owner or owners of record, or the offer has not been made because the owner cannot 
be located with reasonable diligence.” 

In addition, where, as here, the property sought to be taken is already “appropriated to 
public use” (for purposes of California’s Eminent Domain Law GSW’s existing use of its 
property is considered a “public” use), the resolution of necessity is supposed to address whether 
“the use for which the property is sought to be taken is a more necessary public use than the use 
to which the property is appropriated.”  (See Cal. Code of Civil Procedure § 1240.610; see also, 
§1240.650(a) and (c).) 

Finally, it is important to note that while the fact of CMWD’s presentation of the 
purchase offer required by Cal. Government Code § 7267.2 is an issue to be addressed by the 
Board at the resolution of necessity hearing, the adequacy of the price to be paid to GSW is not.  
Notwithstanding GSW’s stated refusal to negotiate, CMWD’s special legal counsel and staff will 
continue to attempt to negotiate a mutually acceptable settlement that will avoid the need for 
litigation even after the resolution of necessity is adopted (assuming it is adopted).  For present 
purposes it suffices to say that the hearing on April 13, 2016, is not the forum to negotiate what 
amount is “just compensation” for the taking of GSW’s property interests. 

C. Summary of Evidence Supporting Required Findings and Determinations. 

In this final section of the staff report we will briefly address the evidence supporting 
each of the required findings and determinations the Board is called upon to make if it decides to 
adopt the proposed resolution. 

1. Public Support 

CMWD’s acquisition of GSW’s Ojai water utility is overwhelmingly supported by the 
residents and ratepayers in Ojai.  Nothing says support like a more than 87% vote of the citizens 
in a small community to tax themselves to repay up to $60 million in bonded indebtedness in 
order to get rid of GSW and achieve their goal of “locally owned water” through the neighboring 
publicly owned water district.  CMWD’s staff believes, CMWD’s Board (through its past 
actions) has demonstrated it believes, and both the trial court and the Court of Appeal in GSW’s 
lawsuit have indicated that they believe local residents in a democracy ought to be able to have a 



Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
April 7, 2016 
Page 7 
 
 

112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

strong voice in decisions affecting one of their most precious public resources—water.  Having a 
locally resident staff and a locally elected Board in which the Ojai residents have a significant 
stake assures this voice will be heard and listened to and respected.  That can’t be said for a for-
profit company owned and controlled by a large out-of-state publicly-traded company. 

2. Public Interest and Necessity; More Necessary Public Use 

CMWD has identified two primary justifications for its acquisition of GSW’s Ojai water 
utility: (i) lowering the total cost of providing water to the Ojai customers and ratepayers, both 
short-term and long-term; and (ii) providing local control over the Ojai community’s water 
utility and thereby providing more transparency, accessibility, accountability, and responsiveness 
than exists with GSW and the CPUC. 

The water cost issue was thoroughly addressed during the CFD formation process and is 
summarized in the historical summary above.  (See, e.g., the March 20, 2011, Richard Hajas 
study and the CFD documents previously presented to the Board sizing the maximum CFD 
special tax and bonded indebtedness amounts at levels that would still result in no increase in 
Ojai customers’ overall water cost.)  This report will not repeat everything that has already been 
presented to the Board on the subject.  In brief, GSW’s Ojai rates are extremely high by any 
measure. 

GSW’s Ojai water system serves approximately 2880 metered water services, of which 
over two-thirds of water delivered is to residential accounts (2010 Urban Water Management 
Plan, Ojai).  The largest sector of the residential accounts is represented by service through a 
5/8” -3/4” meter using, on average, 12 CCF (hundred cubic feet) of water.  In GSW’s recent 
application to the CPUC for a general rate increase (Application No. 14-07-006) the above 
standard of customer service was presented to provide a comparison of the typical current and 
proposed water bill.  It should also be understood that the GSW customer is also charged an 
additional surcharge (Water Revenue Adjustment Mechanism and Modified Cost Balancing 
Account, California Alternate Rates for Water [“WRAM”]) on the basis of water consumption to 
adjust for revenue shortfalls.  The CPUC model prohibits regulated utilities from keeping 
reserves or permanently changing rates when revenue fails to cover operating expenses during 
periods of reduced usage (GSWC - Glossary). 

In comparison with a CMWD customer whose monthly water bill in March 2016 for the 
above standard would be $33.92, a GSW customer’s monthly bill would be $88.34 (Schedule 
No. OJ-1-R, Effective June 1, 2015)—nearly three (3) times the applicable CMWD rate.  Over a 
one year period, the disparity between the two customers’ water bills is $652.97.  With 
approximately 1,940 GSW Ojai customers represented by the standard presented above, the 
annual disparity between water rates would total approximately $1,266,761. 



Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
April 7, 2016 
Page 8 
 
 

112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

In addition, it should be recognized that if 1,940 GSW Ojai residential customers are 
using 12 CCF, the annual consumption of water would be 641 acre-feet.  This water use is less 
than the 5-year average residential water use (2006-2010, UWMP), less 25 percent for 
conservation goal attainment, of 1,041 acre-feet in residential consumption.   It is apparent that 
many customers do use more than 12 CCF each month and that higher use customers would 
experience an even greater disparity in water rates/cost as their water use increases.  In 
Application No. 14-07-006, GSW also used a standard of a 1” meter service using 76 CCF.  The 
disparity between the monthly and annual water bills for 76 CCF is $386.42 and $4,637.40, 
respectively.  

While the “all-in” cost comparison between the cost of service under GSW and the cost 
of service under CMWD cannot be exactly pinpointed at this time—for the simple reason that 
CMWD’s total acquisition cost for GSW’s Ojai water utility has not been determined—all of the 
evidence that has been generated indicates that even if the maximum CFD bond debt is incurred 
to acquire GSW (and CMWD’s appraisal would support a significantly lower CFD bond debt 
than that), Ojai property owners/ratepayers will benefit from a significant reduction in their cost 
of water.  Moreover, once the CFD bond debt is retired the Ojai property owners/ratepayers will 
benefit from a second substantial and permanent drop in their cost of service, something they 
could never look forward to if the utility remains in private ownership. 

CMWD has inherent advantages over GSW – or any other private owner of the Ojai 
water utility – in terms of the economies of scale, efficiencies of operation, and resulting lower 
costs.  Ojai is a relatively small, isolated community.  It is inefficient for any private utility 
company to attempt to serve Ojai from afar.  By contrast, CMWD operates in the surrounding 
140 square mile service area and has a much larger customer base and significantly more water 
connections. 

Public ownership by its nature has other inherent advantages over private ownership in 
terms of the cost of providing service.  CMWD is a non-profit organization, whereas GSW (and 
any other private owner) has to charge its ratepayers higher rates in order to generate a return on 
investment.  GSW also pays both property taxes and income taxes, which are passed on to its 
ratepayers in the form of higher rates, whereas CMWD pays no taxes and therefore does not 
need to recover any such costs from its ratepayers.  Finally, CMWD can borrow funds at tax-
exempt rates and has access to low cost financing and no cost grants that are available from the 
State of California for certain water utility system improvements and upgrades, whereas GSW 
generally must borrow at the higher rates charged to private businesses. 

As the Court of Appeal noted in its recent decision rejecting GSW’s legal challenge to 
the CFD, public ownership of GSW’s Ojai water utility will also produce several “governance” 
benefits:  (1) GSW’s Ojai customers have no right to participate in GSW management decisions, 
as they will with CMWD; (2) unlike the situation with GSW, CMWD’s Board members live in 



Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
April 7, 2016 
Page 9 
 
 

112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

the community and are accessible to local residents; (3) CMWD’s Board members perform a 
public service with almost no personal financial return, whereas GSW’s Board represents an out-
of-area corporation seeking to maximize profits for the company’s owners; (4) unlike GSW, 
CMWD conducts its business in public meetings within its service area and is subject to the 
Brown Act and California Public Records Act; (5) under Proposition 218 (Cal. Const., Article 
XIII.D) CMWD’s voters have numerous protections prior to having their water rates increased, 
including the right to “protest out” proposed fee increases by majority vote (Bighorn-Desert 
View Water Agency v. Verjil (2006) 39 Cal.4th 205, 217), whereas GSW’s customers do not; and 
(6) CMWD’s customers can express their wishes at the local level, whereas the only “recourse” 
for GSW’s Ojai customers is to attempt to pierce the technical, legalistic, and expensive CPUC 
process with officials and staff located hundreds of miles away. 

Ojai’s residents have expressed considerable frustration and a sense of powerlessness in 
attempting to address their concerns through the CPUC.  Important CPUC proceedings are held 
far away from the local community, and even the local Ojai hearing(s) bring only an 
administrative law judge, not the decision-makers themselves.  The CPUC hearing process is 
also a highly formalized adversarial process with a courtroom-like setting, lawyers, and 
evidentiary rulings.  Local citizens either have to obtain volunteer legal counsel or cannot afford 
the lawyers it takes to fight.  (Id.)  In short, Ojai’s ratepayers, customers, and residents are asking 
for the right to representative democracy that they cannot achieve with GSW or any other private 
utility company regulated by the CPUC.  CMWD offers them that opportunity. 

In summary, CMWD’s staff believes that the two proferred justifications of lower costs 
of service and improved transparency/accessibility/accountability/responsiveness demonstrate 
the public interest and necessity for the condemnation of GSW’s Ojai water utility.  These 
justifications are in effect a comparison of the benefits of CMWD’s operation of the Ojai water 
utility versus leaving that operation in private ownership, and therefore the same justifications 
establish the basis for the Board to make the required determination under Cal. Code of Civil 
Procedure § 1245.610 that CMWD’s proposed use is “a more necessary public use than the use 
to which the property is appropriated” at this time. 

3. Project Planned or Located in the Manner Most Compatible with 
Greatest Public Good and Least Private Injury 

This particular required finding seems more relevant to a decision on the size, 
configuration, and location of a planned public improvement or facility than to a decision on 
whether to acquire and assume operation of an existing privately owned utility.  To the extent 
this finding is applicable to present circumstances, CMWD’s staff believes that CMWD’s 
acquisition of GSW’s Ojai water utility is in fact most compatible with the greatest public good 
for the reasons stated above.  GSW is entitled to receive just compensation for the acquisition, 
which is a “make-whole” remedy, so GSW will not suffer a “private injury.”  In addition, GSW’s 



Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
April 7, 2016 
Page 10 
 
 

112/029518-0001 
9530064.1 a04/07/16  
 

Ojai water utility represents only a tiny fraction of its California utility operation, so CMWD’s 
acquisition should not impact overall GSW operations. 

4. The Property Described in the Resolution Is Necessary for the 
Proposed Project 

The proposal is to acquire all of GSW’s Ojai property and facilities.  All of that property 
is used in its water utility operation and is necessary if CMWD will be taking over that operation. 

5. The Offer Required By Government Code § 7267.2 Has Been 
Made 

As previously stated, CMWD’s purchase offer was made to GSW on February 26, 2016. 

* * * 

If any Board members have questions regarding any of the information provided in this 
Memorandum, we will attempt to address those questions at the April 13th hearing. 

 

cc: John Mathews, General Counsel 





560/029518-0001 
9538403.1 a04/08/16  

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION NO. 16-06 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE CASITAS MUNICIPAL 
WATER DISTRICT DETERMINING THE PUBLIC INTEREST AND NECESSITY FOR 
ACQUISITION OF THE REAL PROPERTY AND BUSINESS ENTERPRISE OWNED 

BY GOLDEN STATE WATER COMPANY WITHIN GOLDEN STATE’S OJAI 
SERVICE AREA 

WHEREAS, the Casitas Municipal Water District (“CMWD”) is authorized by 
California Water Code §§ 71693 and 71694 to utilize the power of eminent domain to acquire 
property necessary or proper for CMWD’s works and to supply the land with sufficient water for 
all CMWD’s purposes; and 

WHEREAS, CMWD has been investigating for several years the possible 
acquisition of property owned by Golden State Water Company (“GSW”) within GSW’s Ojai 
Service Area, as described in an offer letter attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and incorporated 
herein by this reference (the “Property”), for the purpose of converting GSW’s privately held 
water distribution system to a publicly held water distribution system owned and operated by 
CMWD (the “Proposed Public Use”); and  

WHEREAS, in April 2011, a local citizens group, the Ojai Friends of Locally 
Owned Water (“Ojai Flow”), approached CMWD with a request that CMWD initiate 
proceedings to acquire and take over GSW’s Ojai water utility, indicating that GSW’s customers 
had experienced water rate increases of over 75% since 2008 on top of water rates that were 
already higher than those in surrounding communities; and 

WHEREAS, Ojai Flow presented a financial feasibility analysis prepared by 
Richard Hajas (dated March 2011), which concluded that it was financially feasible to reduce the 
water rates of GSW’s Ojai customers if CMWD were to acquire the system and replace GSW as 
the operator of the system; and  

WHEREAS, in June 2011, Ojai Flow presented petitions to CMWD signed by 
approximately 1,900 of GSW’s Ojai customers requesting CMWD to consider the acquisition 
and to give GSW’s Ojai customers the opportunity to vote on paying for the acquisition of 
GSW’s Ojai system; and 

WHEREAS, on January 29, 2013, CMWD’s Board of Directors (“Board”) 
considered taking the necessary action to form a Community Facilities District (“CFD”) for the 
acquisition of the property and facilities owned and held by GSW in its Ojai service area; 

WHEREAS, at the conclusion of the hearing on January 29, 2013, CMWD’s 
Board: 

1. Approved CMWD’s Local Goals and Policies for Use of Mello-Roos
Community Facilities District Act of 1982; 



2. Adopted a Resolution of Intention to Establish Community Facilities 
District No. 20013-1 (Ojai) and to Authorize the Levy of Special Taxes Therein; 

3. Adopted a Resolution Declaring the CMWD Board of Director’s Intention 
to Reimburse Expenditures from the Proceeds of Certain Community Facilities District Bond 
Obligations; and  

4. Set a public hearing for March 13, 2013, to consider and finally determine 
whether to approve the Rate and Method of Apportionment for the proposed CFD, approve the 
maximum special tax that can be imposed on properties within the boundaries of the CFD to 
support the acquisition of the GSW Ojai water system and fund capital improvements to that 
system, proceed with formation of the CFD, and schedule a special election at which the voters 
in the proposed CFD would have the opportunity to vote on whether or not to approve those 
actions; and 

WHEREAS, on March 13, 2013, CMWD’s Board held a public hearing to 
consider formation of the CFD, and adopted 3 resolutions:  

1. Resolution No. 13-12, establishing the CFD, listing the property and 
facilities to be acquired (the “Facilities”), and authorizing the levy of a special tax against 
properties within the boundaries of the CFD;  

2. Resolution No. 13-13, declaring the necessity to issue up to $60 million in 
CFD bonds to finance the cost of the Facilities, and submitting the question of incurring bond 
debt to an election; and  

3. Resolution No. 13-14, calling a special election for August 27, 2013, on 
the question of issuing CFD bonds and levying CFD special taxes to pay the bond debt; and 

WHEREAS, on April 10, 2013, the Board adopted its Resolution No. 13-16, 
which made slight revisions to the ballot language previously approved in Resolution No. 13-14; 
and 

WHEREAS, on March 26, 2013, GSW filed a lawsuit against CMWD and all 
persons interested in the matter of the Board’s adoption of the aforementioned resolutions in 
Ventura County Superior Court (Case No. 56-2013-00433986-CU-WM-VTA) seeking to 
invalidate the actions taken by the CMWD Board in forming the CFD and seeking to enjoin and 
prohibit CMWD from conducting the August 27, 2013, special election, issuing the CFD bonds, 
and imposing CFD special taxes; and 

WHEREAS, the Ventura County Superior Court declined to take action on 
GSW’s lawsuit until after the August 27th election; and 

WHEREAS, on August 27, 2013, the special election took place and 87.42% of 
the ballots cast were cast in favor of the CFD, including the issuance of CFD bonds and the 
levying of special taxes to finance the Proposed Public Use; and 



WHEREAS, GSW’s lawsuit attempting to invalidate the formation of the CFD 
went to trial in early 2014 and the trial court ruled in favor of CMWD and against GSW on all 
claims; 

WHEREAS, GSW filed an appeal of the trial court’s decision and, on April 14, 
2015, the Second District Court of Appeal issued its published opinion affirming the trial court’s 
decision and denying GSW’s appeal (Golden State Water Company v. Casitas Municipal Water 
District (2015) 235 Cal.App.4th 1246); and 

WHEREAS, CMWD commissioned an appraisal of the Property for the purpose 
of initiating negotiations with GSW for CMWD’s acquisition of the Property and in compliance 
with California Government Code § 7267.2; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to California Government Code § 7267.2, CMWD has 
obtained an appraisal of the Property to be acquired and has made an offer to GSW for the full 
amount set forth in the appraisal (attached hereto as Exhibit “1”); and 

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2016, after no less than fifteen (15) days written notice 
to GSW, the record owner of the Property, the Board of Directors of CMWD held a hearing for 
the purpose of allowing the record owner a reasonable opportunity to appear and be heard on the 
following matters: 

1. Whether the public interest and necessity require the Proposed Public Use; 

2. Whether the Proposed Public Use is planned or located in the manner that 
will be most compatible with the greatest public good and least private injury; 

3. Whether the Property sought to be acquired is necessary for the Proposed 
Public Use; and 

4. Whether the offer required by Section 7267.2 of the California 
Government Code has been made to the owner of record; and 

WHEREAS, CMWD’s Board, as a result of such hearing, has determined that the 
Proposed Public Use will serve the public interest in that it will result in lower water rates and 
charges in GSW’s Ojai Service Area, and the privately-held water distribution system will 
become subject to the political process, resulting in greater citizen control over water rates and 
charges and the overall operation of the system; and 

WHEREAS, CMWD’s Board has further determined that the public health, 
safety and welfare require that CMWD acquire the Property for the purposes of carrying out the 
Proposed Public Use; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 
Casitas Municipal Water District as follows: 

SECTION 1. The above recitals are true and correct. 



SECTION 2. The Proposed Public Use for which the Property is sought to be 
acquired is the conversion of GSW’s privately-held water distribution facility enterprise in its 
Ojai Service Area to public ownership under the control of CMWD. 

SECTION 3. The property interests to be acquired are described in the offer 
letter and attachments thereto attached hereto as Exhibit “1” and incorporated herein as set forth 
in full. 

SECTION 4. The public interest and necessity require the Proposed Public Use 
for the reasons set forth in the April 13, 2016 staff report to the Board from Steve Wickstrum, 
CMWD’s General Manager, and Jeffrey M. Oderman, CMWD’s special counsel to the Board 
(including the exhibits referred to therein) (collectively, the “Staff Report”) and for the reasons 
expressed by staff and members of the public in favor of the acquisition at the April 13, 2016 
Board meeting. 

SECTION 5. The Proposed Public Use is planned and located in a manner most 
compatible with the greatest public good and the least private injury for the reasons set forth in 
the Staff Report. 

SECTION 6. The Property is necessary for the Proposed Public Use for the 
reasons set forth in the Staff Report. 

SECTION 7. The Proposed Public Use is a more necessary public use pursuant 
to California Code of Civil Procedure §§ 1240.610 et seq., for the reasons set forth in the Staff 
Report. 

SECTION 8. The offer required by California Government Code § 7267.2(a), 
together with the accompanying statement of and summary of the basis for the amount 
established as just compensation, was made to GSW, which offer and accompanying 
statement/summary were in a form and contained all of the factual disclosures provided by 
California Government Code § 7267.2(a).  The offer letter and summary basis for the amount 
established as just compensation is attached hereto as Exhibit “1.”  CMWD’s special counsel has 
attempted to negotiate with GSW subsequent to this offer, but such negotiations have not proved 
successful in securing the necessary property interests outside of more formal proceedings. 

SECTION 9. CMWD has statutory authority to acquire the Property and is 
authorized to acquire the Property pursuant to California Water Code §§ 71693-71694 and 
California Code of Civil Procedure §§ 1240.410 et seq. and §§ 1240.610 et seq. 

SECTION 10.  CMWD has complied with all conditions and statutory 
requirements necessary to exercise the power of eminent domain (the “right to take”) to acquire 
the Property, as well as any other matter regarding the right to take the Property by eminent 
domain. 

SECTION 11.  The Proposed Public Use is not a “project” subject to the 
California Environmental Quality Act for the reasons set forth in the Staff Report. 

SECTION 12.  The law firm of Rutan & Tucker, LLP, special counsel for 
the District, is hereby authorized to prepare and prosecute in the name of CMWD such special 



proceedings in the proper court having jurisdiction thereof as are necessary for acquisition of the 
Property described herein, and to prepare and file such pleadings, documents, and otherwise 
prosecute such actions as may be necessary in the opinion of such attorneys to acquire the 
Property for CMWD.  Such attorneys are specifically authorized to take whatever steps and/or 
procedures available to them under the Eminent Domain Law of the State of California, 
including, but not limited to, seeking orders for prejudgment possession of the Property.  CMWD 
staff is further authorized to take any appropriate action consistent with the purposes of this 
Resolution. 

* * * * * * * * * * * * * * 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Casitas Municipal 
Water District, County of Ventura, State of California, on the 13th day of April, 2016 by the 
following vote of the members thereof: 

AYES:  
  NOES: 
  ABSENT: 

 
     ___________________________________ 
     Pete Kaiser, President 
     Casitas Municipal Water District 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
James W. Word, Secretary 
Casitas Municipal Water District 
 
 
 

 



 

560/029518-0001 
9538403.1 a04/07/16 EXHBIIT “1” 
 

 





























































































































































1 

 

MEMORANDUM 
_________________________________________________________________________ 

TO:   Board of Directors 

From:  Steven E. Wickstrum, General Manager 

RE:  2016 Casitas Water Supply and Demand Status 

Date:   April 4, 2016 

_________________________________________________________________________________ 

1. RECOMMENDATION 

It is recommended that the Board of Directors read and consider the content of the following 
memorandum, ask questions and provide direction to staff at a subsequent meeting of the Board of 
Directors.  Such direction may include but not be limited to the declaration that a Stage 3 condition 
exists in the Lake Casitas water supply and direction to staff to implement specific water conservation 
and demand reduction measures and actions that are required to be taken by all Casitas customers.   

2. BACKGROUND 
 
In accordance with the direction provided in the Water Efficiency and Allocation Program, adopted 
June 10, 2015, specifically Section 5.2 entitled “Water Resource Conditions and Actions,” the General 
Manager has prepared an annual assessment of local water supplies, water demands, and current 
effectiveness of water demand reduction measures is attached to this memorandum.  The information 
in the assessment may necessitate the consideration and direction from the Board of Directors for 
further actions to preserve water supply for the future. 
 

3. ASSESSMENT SUMMARY 
 

The assessment provided in this memorandum can be summarized by the following points: 
a) The Ventura River watershed is experiencing a continued drought condition and did not 

receive appreciable rainfall during the 2016 winter to restore water supplies in either the local 
groundwater basins or Lake Casitas;  and 

b) Lake Casitas will decline to forty (40) percent stored water level by June 1, 2016, at which time 
a Stage 3 condition in Lake Casitas is recognized;  and 

c) The Lake Casitas stored water level will continue to decline further until significant rainfall 
occurs in the future, and given no rain and depending upon the rate of water extraction, may 
attain minimum pool between four to six years from the present condition; 

d) Water use in FY 2015-16 for all Casitas classifications has declined in varying degree during 
the drought as compared to water use in FY 2013-14; and 

e) The Casitas urban customer water use in the first six months of FY 2015-16 has decrease 38 
percent from that of the same months in FY 2013-14, which exceeds the State’s regulatory 
drought emergency standard of 32 percent for Casitas; and 

f) Casitas has implemented Stage 2 mandatory compliance of customers to an individual 
allocation assignment, strengthened public outreach to conserve water supplies, and 



2 

 

implemented demand reduction measure with a Conservation surcharge of $1.00 per unit for 
monthly residential exceedance of the monthly allocation assignments and $0.25 per unit for 
exceedance of annual allocation assignment for all other classifications; 

g) Growth is extremely slow as evidenced by the issuance of limited numbers of meters and 
allocations. 

 
The assessments are to be considered in the implementation of a change in Stage and the demand 
reduction measures for FY 2016-17.  
 

4. ASSESSMENTS 
 
HYDROLOGY – WEATHER CONDITIONS.   
Over the last nine years, western Ventura County has been under the influence of a high pressure 
weather system that has allowed only a limited number of rain storms to approach the local 
watersheds.  Normal or average rainfall for the area is approximately 21 inches. Only four of the last 
ten years were above normal rainfall years and the last five years have been below average in rainfall 
(Table 1).  It is very apparent that a prolonged dry cycle has been occurring in the Ventura River 
watershed. 
 
 Table 1 – Rainfall Totals for Matilija Dam and Casitas Dam (inches) 

 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Matilija Dam 9.23 33.62 16.56 36.54 40.28 14.21 11.85 14.76 17.57 13.35 

Casitas Dam 8.60 26.19 14.82 31.13 35.99 15.11 10.99 9.90 11.65 11.07 

 
The start of the winter of FY 2015-16 had high expectations of an El Nino condition that would bring 
needed water rainfall to replenish the groundwater basins and surface water storage – “Too Big to 
Fail” (David Patzert, JPL).  Now, we have observed that the El Nino storms have swept through 
California approximately 200 miles north of Ventura County.  There were no significant rain events in 
the Ventura River watersheds and no appreciable recovery to our water systems.  There remains 
some optimism that rain could occur in April and May, but generally the late rains of April and May 
have not been of sufficient magnitude to cause appreciable runoff in our local watershed.  This year’s 
rainy season appears to be effectively over for the Ventura River watershed. 
 
In addition to the lack of local rainfall, the ambient air temperatures have been above average, if not 
record setting.  The elevated temperatures cause a rise in the need for irrigation water. 
 
The Climate Prediction Center/NCEP/NWS issued a March 10, 2016 discussion on the El 
Nino/Southern Oscillation (ENSO) that in summary stated “A transition to ENSO-neutral is likely 
during the late Northern Hemisphere spring or early summer 2016, with close to a 50% chance for La 
Nina conditions to develop by the fall.”   Previous La Nina years have tended to produce dry to 
moderate rainfall years in Southern California and are not likely to improve water supply conditions 
during the winter of 2017. 
 
WATER RESOURCES.    



3 

 

The primary water resources within the Casitas district boundaries are collectively the groundwater 
basins of the Ventura River, Ojai and Upper Ojai, and the surface water storage at Lake Casitas. 
 
Groundwater Basins.  The winter of 2016 brought minimal recovery to the local groundwater basins 
within the Casitas district boundaries.   
 
The Upper Ventura River groundwater storage levels gained slightly during the few rain events of 
2016.  Surface flows were more indicative of urban flash runoff rather than a full basin condition.  
There was no surface flow continuity from Robles to Foster Park.  The Ventura River Water District 
and Meiners Oaks Water District have expressed to Casitas that their ability to pump groundwater will 
cease by mid-summer of 2016, at which time the water demand loads from each agency will be 
transferred to the Lake Casitas supply. 
 
The Ojai Basin storage did not recover appreciably from the 2016 rainfall.  The Ojai Basin has been in 
a decline but remained above the record low storage level of the early 1950s.  The Upper Ojai Basin, 
while having declined due to the lack of rainfall and infiltration during the current drought period, is 
relatively good condition to continue to provide enough water to pumpers in the Upper Ojai.  
 
Surface Water Storage - Lake Casitas.  Lake Casitas is the primary source of water supply for the 
Casitas Municipal Water District, constructed in the 1950’s as a supplemental supply to local 
groundwater and as a primary source for areas that had no groundwater.  Lake Casitas was last at a 
near full storage capacity (252,867 acre-feet) in May 2006.  Since 2006, as illustrated in Figure 1, 
Lake Casitas storage has been in decline. The amount of water in storage at Lake Casitas on April 1, 
2016 is approximately 106,000 acre-feet (41.7%).  The amount of water stored in Lake Casitas will 
decline to less than 40 percent by June 1, 2016, and continue to decline through the peak water 
demands of the 2016 summer.  It is unknown when the next significant rainfall events will return to 
cause a water storage recovery in Lake Casitas. 

 
Figure 1 – Lake Casitas Storage Volume and Rainfall Trend (1970 to 2016) 
 



4 

 

A critical question that has been asked many times is - How long will the Lake Casitas supply last 
before declining to a minimum pool condition?  Figure 2 provides an estimated trend for Lake Casitas 
where hypothetically there are no inflows (surface flows or rainfall) in the future, assuming four 
variations to the annual water demand, and the application of the evaporation rate to the declining 
surface area of Lake Casitas.  The answer to the minimum pool question, from the starting point of 
106,000 acre-feet in storage, is approximately four to six years. 
 

 
Figure 2 – Hypothetical Decline in Lake Casitas Storage 
 
WATER USE.   
Casitas has many time reviewed water use conditions in comparison to the safe yield of Lake Casitas.  
The latest work in 2003 reflected the water demands that occurred during the 1987 through 1991 
drought period, with the concern that multiple dry years would result in an escalation of the water 
demand to levels above the safe yield, and that a continuation of the escalated water demand could 
rapidly lead to a Lake Casitas minimum pool condition.   
 
In the 2007 through 2013 period, the water use tracked consistent to the 2003 evaluation.  In 2014 
and 2015, the third and fourth consecutive dry years, there appears to be a significant change in 
water use that reversed the escalation trend that was observed in 1990’s.  Figure 3 illustrates the 
changes in water demand from 1970 to present, and the significant change beginning in 2014. 
Possible influences to the change could be improvements to agricultural irrigation methods, the loss of 
large customers in the City of Ventura, heightened public participation in water conservation. 
 
In April 2014, the State issued its Drought Emergency Declaration with a major public relations 
campaign.  Casitas had already started its public information campaign with the recognition of 
declining lake levels to 50 percent of supply.  The water conservation campaigns in 2015 intensified 
further with Lake Casitas declining to below the 50 percent storage level and the issuance of the 
State’s Drought Emergency Regulations that required Casitas urban customers to reduce water use 
by 32 percent from the water use of calendar year 2013. 



5 

 

 

 
Figure 3 – Lake Casitas Releases to the Main Conveyance System 
 
Drought Water Demand Response.  A critical function of the WEAP is to manage water supplies in 
such a manner that prevent Lake Casitas from reaching a minim pool condition.  A lesson learned 
from the Australian drought experience – start intense conservation measures early, rather than later, 
later is too late. 
 
In May 2015, Casitas informed all customers of the implementation of the WEAP, the assignment of 
individual water allocations to each meter service, and the application of annual and monthly 
conservation surcharges for water use that is in excess of the assigned allocation.  The Casitas 
declaration of a Stage 2 condition shifted water conservation from a voluntary status to a mandatory 
adherence to not exceed assigned water allocations.  The district’s Water Conservation personnel 
developed and assigned water allocations to each individual meter service.  The Casitas 
Administration Department performed a test run of the billing during July and August of 2015.  The full 
implementation of the monthly conservation surcharge for the Residential Classification began with 
the September 2015 water use billing.  The goal for the Casitas customers is to achieve water use 
that would be at or less than the allocation assignment and in effect, result in water use that would 
mandatorily not exceed 80 percent of the 1989 water use.  The District’s urban water use has also 
been challenged to meet the State’s assignment of a 32 percent reduction in water use from that 
water use occurring in calendar year 2013. 
 
The urban classifications (commercial, interdepartmental, fire, industrial, other, and residential) water 
demand by the for the first six months of FY 2015-16 has attained a 38 percent reduction from the FY 
2013-14 water demand for the same classifications.  This exceeds the State’s water conservation 
requirement to attain a 32 percent reduction.  It should be recognized that Resale customers also had 



6 

 

similar water demand reductions in their service areas while meeting the State’s conservation 
standards.  The public appears to have responded to the requests to conserve water. 
 
The comparative data in Table 2 illustrates the customer classification water use response under the 
Stage 2 Condition and the State’s Drought Emergency Regulations for the first six months of FY 
2015-16.  The comparison is limited to the six month period for which data is available and 
representative of recent events.  Each of the listed six month periods experienced similar low rainfall 
totals and exhibit the water demand reduction resulting from the public outreach that was 
implemented by Casitas and the State’s declaration of a drought.   

Table 2 – Customer Classification Allocation Assignment and Water Use – Six-Month Comparison 

Water Customer 
Classification 

 
Annual  

Allocation 
 

(AF/YR) 

FY 13-14 
 

Jul-Dec  
 

(AF) 

FY 15-16 
 

Jul-Dec  
 

(AF) 

Change 
FY 13-14  

to  
FY 15-16 

 (AF) 

% Change 
FY 13-14  

to  
FY 15-16 

  
Agriculture-Domestic 6732 3,068 2,862 -206 -7 % 

Agriculture 3200 2,431 1,971 -460 - 19 % 

Commercial 536 488 348 -140 - 29 % 

Interdepartmental 100 85 43 -42 - 51 % 

Fire 0 1 0 -1 - 100% 

Industrial 54 11 8 -3 -38 % 

Other 184 180 80 -100 - 56 % 

Residential 2290 1,066 656 -410 - 38 % 

Resale Pumped 1846 889 715 -174 -20 % 

Resale Gravity 5000 3,470 2,519 -951 - 27 % 

Temporary 0 46 9 -37 - 80 % 

Total 20,142 11,735 9,211 -2,524 - 22 % 

 
The water sales data for the FY 2015-16, through February 2016, indicates continued conservation 
that trend toward a fiscal water sales total of approximately 16,000 acre-feet. 
 
The annual allocation numbers included in Table 2 are representative of the sum of allocation 
assignments in each classification.  It should be noted that the annual allocation also accounts for the 
agricultural groundwater water demand known to date that may shift to the Lake Casitas supply. 
 
The District has been tracking the performance of the Residential classification relative to the monthly 
water allocation assignments for each individual residential account.  In September 2015, the water 
used in excess of the monthly allocation was billed as a Conservation Penalty at the rate of $1.00 per 
unit.  In general, the residential classification appears to be practicing appropriate water conservation, 
with over 85 percent of the accounts using less water than the assigned allocation (Table 3).  For 
some customers calling into the District about their conservation penalty, it appears that some 
customers did not make adjustments to outdoor irrigation to match the season variation in the 



7 

 

allocation assignment.  Many customers are only slightly over the allocation threshold, while staff has 
noted that approximately 5 percent of the residential customers are far from meeting the allocation 
assignment and will be contacted by Casitas staff to offer assistance to help those high-use 
customers reduce their water demand. 
 
Table 3 – Residential Water Demand in Excess of Allocation Assignments 
 Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Total 

Number of Residential Accounts 2,709 2,709 2,711 2,700 2,706 2,704  

Accounts with Conservation Penalty  228 407 412 368 218 368  

Units Over-Allocation (Units) 9,936 13,220 12,628 10,072 3,339 6,698 55,893 

Residential Water Sales (Units) 55,321 44,867 44,867 41,382 21,780 29,185 237,402 

 
For the remaining classifications, the initial allocation is an annual water demand, with a Conservation 
Penalty that is to be billed in July 2016.  The annual allocation classifications will be assessed $0.25 
per unit in the Conservation Penalty.  The annual classifications are informed monthly of their water 
use in progress. Staff has noted that a majority of the annual classification customers are likely to 
attain water use that is less than their assigned annual allocation, while some have already or are 
likely to surpass the annual allocation assignment and receive a bill in July 2016 for the conservation 
Penalty. 
 
Revenue.  The reduction in water demand with no change in water rates has resulted in a reduction in 
revenue.  The Revenue and Expense Report for July 1, 2015 through January 2016, indicates that 
water sales revenue is $942,413.65 less than the same period in FY 2014-15.  The good news is that 
the revenue through January 2016 ($4,227,662) is pacing to meet the budget estimate of $7,288,779, 
based on current rates and the sale of 16,619 acre-feet.  Applying an additional 10 percent of water 
demand reduction measures could result in an additional $700,000 reduction in revenue and will 
begin to affect Casitas’ ability to meet budgetary requirements to operate and maintain the Casitas 
water system unless balanced by appropriate changes to water rates or the application of variation of 
water sales reserves. 
 
Growth.  The service area of the District is in extremely slow growth.  Most requests the Casitas 
receives are related to expansions of agriculture or residential housing construction.  The slow growth 
rate is indicative of the information illustrated in Table 4.  During the past five years, Casitas has 
installed fourteen meters and issued 17.3 acre-feet of water allocation.  There are three pending 
requests for allocation expansions that have not moved forward to date.  On the average of less than 
three meters per year have been installed, and minus the agricultural allocation, less than 2.5 acre-
feet per year allocated to new or expanding water use.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 

 

Table 4 – Water Service and Allocation Assignments by Casitas MWD (CY 2012-2015) 
 

No. of 
Meters 
Issued 

Allocation 
Issued 

(AF) 

Project types and expansions of existing allocations 

2012 3 2.22 Three residential projects, one expansion of allocation 

2013 1 1.88 1 residential project, 1 expansion of allocation 

2014 6 9.85 5 AF for one Agricultural parcel, five other residential projects 
and two expansions of allocation. 

2015 1 1.27 One residential project in Ventura River Water District service 
area and 1 expansion of allocation 

2016 3 2.08 Residential projects in Casitas (two) and Ventura River Water 
District (one). 

Pending 0 4.92 
4 AF expansion potential for Agricultural parcel, 0.92 AF for two 
other commercial project allocation expansions 

 
 

5. RECOMMENDED WEAP ACTIONS 
 

The WEAP lists in Table 6 a series of actions to be considered by the Board of Directors for 
implementation when transitioning to any Stage condition of Lake Casitas.  A copy of the WEAP Table 
6 is attached to the end of this memorandum.  The following are assessments of the WEAP actions: 
 
Communications.   
 Declare Stage 3.  Key to the action is the recognition that the change in Stage condition is 

eminent and likely to occur and persist in the near future.  The declaration of a change to 
Stage 3 condition is accomplished by a resolution of the Board of Directors.  Stage 3 is 
identified as a condition in which a water shortage is eminent. 

 
 Expand and intensify public information campaign.  The purpose of making the 

assessments and declaration in April of each year is to allow for additional communications to 
the customers of the impending change that will become effective on July 1.  A change that 
further reduces the water allocation or changes the conservation surcharge is intended to 
affect the water demands on the Lake Casitas supply.  The changes will also have an effect on 
the planning of businesses, agricultural customers, and higher use residential customers.  
With a notification of the changes in April, there is a two month period for customers to make 
adjustments to their water demand. 

 
 Provide regular briefings, publish monthly consumption report.  A part of this task is 

being accomplished as require by the State Water resources Control Board.  Additionally, the 
billing system provides to the customer a monthly status on their water use progress and the 
application of conservation surcharges.  



9 

 

 
 Hire additional temporary staff in customer service, conservation, and water 

distribution for water waste enforcement.  This topic has been discussed among staff and 
there does not appear to be a need at this time for additional staffing.  This could change and 
additional staffing justified. 

 
 Moratorium on new service connections.  A specific concern that occurred in the 1990’s 

was that a declaration of a water shortage would cause an influx of additional requests for 
water service and allocations from land developers.  Indeed, that did happen in 1990.  Casitas 
declared a water service moratorium and developed a waiting list that included 300 applicants.  
When it came time to pay for the allocation and water service connection, only one in ten 
applicants completed the process.  Based on the Growth section above, an alternative to the 
complete moratorium, which is generally a temporary action, is to (1) limit the volume of 
allocation to be issued in any one year,  suggest 10 acre-feet per fiscal year, (2) require a non-
refundable deposit of $1,000 upon submittal of the application for the water meter service 
and/or allocation, and (3) apply $800 of the non-refundable deposit toward the allocation fee, 
and (4) require the fees and water service agreement be completed within 60 days of notice of 
availability by the District. 

 
Customer Demand Reduction Measures. 
 Continue with Stage 1 and 2 measures.  Water conservation is becoming more of a way of 

life for the District’s customers and the District should intensify the message that a water 
shortage is eminent.  The enforcement of the Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance has 
continued and should continue into Stage 3 under the current system of public notification of 
waste.  The system for allocation assignment and billing has now been implemented and 
should continue into Stage 3. 

 
 Reduce water allocations.  Begin Stage 3 on July 1, 2016, with a 10 percent reduction of 

water demand from that required in Stage 2.  The customer water demand reduction response 
in the first seven months of FY 2015-16 have been very positive.  If the water demand 
reduction measures are not being met during the course of FY 2016-17, make an additional 
adjustment to the allocations. 

 
 Landscape watering restricted to one day per week.  Direct staff to develop a plan for 

implementing the one-day a week landscape watering restriction.  This would allow for 
coordination with other water agencies and provide guidelines that easy for the customers to 
follow and straight forward for staff to enforce. 

 
 No landscape changes unless xeriscape.   This requirement will take some coordination 

with customers, County and City planning offices, and probably more restricted by the 
allocation assignments for the parcel. 

 
Penalties and Rates. 
 Consider and implement Conservation Penalty for water use in excess of allocation.  

The District has established a conservation penalty of $1.00 for each unit of water that is over 
the monthly allocation assignment for the Residential classification and a $0.25 for each unit of 
water that is over the annual allocation for all other classification of service.  It is 



10 

 

recommended to keep the conservation penalty at the same value for FY 2016-17 and change 
only if it is determined that water demand reduction is not being attained. 

 
 Consider rates for revenue stabilization and cost of service.  The Board will be 

considering water rates to achieve revenue stabilization and cost of service that will become 
effective for FY 2016-17. 

 
6. OTHER. 

Alternate Water Resources.  It is understood that the City of Ventura is actively seeking to 
expand to alternate water resources that may include direct potable reuse, emergency 
interconnection to State Water via Callegaus Municipal Water District, and seawater 
desalinization.  The Board of Directors may direct the General Manager to engage in 
discussion with the City to include the participation by Casitas and other local water agencies. 

 
7. POLICY AND PROGRAMS IN PLACE. 

 
The combination of the State’s recognition of a statewide drought and the Casitas recognition of 
transitioning to a Stage 2 condition at Lake Casitas has resulted in actions to reduce water demands 
that have been adopted by the Board of Directors and the State of California.   
 
Resolution Adopting Management Priorities of Casitas Municipal Water District, Resolution 
No. 93-12.  On March 10th, 1993, the Casitas Board of Directors resolved by Resolution No. 93-12 (1) 
that Casitas shall manage Lake Casitas and its water supplies so that it can provide back up to other 
water systems and meet its direct customer demands during droughts without running the lake dry. 
 
Water Waste Prohibition Ordinance.  (Ordinance 15-02).  This Ordinance established water waste 
prohibitions and identified actions against violations of the Ordinance.  Casitas staff has been actively 
engaged with the public reports of water waste. 
 
Water Conservation Program.  Since 1992, Casitas has actively assisted water customers 
throughout the district with fixture retrofits, irrigation surveys, residential and institutional water use 
surveys, provision of water conservation materials to local schools, public workshops and 
presentations on a wide variety of water conservation topics, public messaging, and financing 
assistance for water well improvements.  The Water Conservation Program has partnered with other 
Ventura County agencies to obtain grants for additional water conservation measures. 
 
Water Efficiency and Allocation Program (WEAP).  The WEAP is the key water management tool 
for long-term drought response and water demand.  The WEAP was adopted by the Board of 
Directors in January 1992 and recently adopted a revision of the WEAP in June 2015.  The WEAP is 
the backbone to the Casitas Urban Water Management Plan.    A critical element of the WEAP 
implementation is to cause water demands to be commensurate to the declared Stage of Lake 
Casitas.   
 
In April, 2015, the Board of Directors declared that a Stage 2 condition for the Lake Casitas supply 
and directed staff to implement the Stage 2 actions that required a mandatory twenty percent 
reduction in water use from that water use in 1989.  The mandatory reduction in water use twenty 
percent was considered in the assignment of water allocations for each Casitas water service.   



11 

 

 
By July 2015, Casitas completed the assignment of customer water allocations, and the initial billing 
modifications to track customer allocation assignments and conservation penalty for water use that is 
over the allocation assignment.   The residential classification was placed on a monthly schedule for 
the water billing and conservation penalty, while all other classifications were placed on an annual 
schedule.  Each water bill informs the customer of their allocation status. 
 
State of California.  On January 17, 2014, the Governor of the State of California proclaimed a state 
of emergency due to water supply impacts caused by three consecutive years of drought.  The 
Governor has extended the state of emergency through October 2016.  The State Water resources 
Control Board (SWRCB) has adopted and continued drought emergency regulations that require an 
urban water demand reduction from a base water use that occurred in FY 2013-14.  For Casitas, the 
assigned for urban water demand reduction is 32 percent.  The messaging by the State of a statewide 
drought has been very effective in causing local public response.   
 
The El Nino of 2016 has replenished Northern California’s water supply and snow pack.  State Water 
availability has moved from a low of 15 percent in 2015 to a current level of 45 percent.  The State 
can be expected to continue with the goal to reduce water demands statewide.  One El Nino has 
improved the short-term water outlook but has not solved the State’s water issues. 
 

8. CONCLUSION. 
 
The Ventura River watershed is in the grips of an extended drought period and Lake Casitas has 
performed as designed to supply water during the drought.  We have no idea of how much longer until 
rain will return to the water shed in ample amounts to restore the groundwater basins, Lake Casitas 
and surface flows of local rivers.  It will take critical and timely action by all water purveyors and the 
local communities and customers to survive on a limited water supply. 
 
If you have any other questions, please ask. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 

 

Table 6 – Stage Actions and Water Demand Reduction Measures 
Water 

Shortage 
Condition 

Key Casitas 
Communications and 
Actions 

Customer Demand 
Reduction Measures 

Penalties 
And 

Rates 
Stage 1 

 
Supply Range 
100% - 50% 

 
Demand Reduction 

0% 
 

(80% of 1989 use) 

• Initiate public information and 
advertising campaign. 

• Publicize ways to reduce water 
consumption. 

• Coordinate conservation actions 
with other water purveyors and 
cities. 

• Perform water audits and promote 
water efficient use/conversions. 

• Conduct water workshops. 
• Temporary staffing for public 

inquiries, as needed. 

• Water conservation practices requested of 
all customer classifications. 

• Adhere to Water Waste Prohibition 
Ordinance. 

• Adhere to assigned water allocation or 
less. 
  

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 

Stage 2 
 

Supply Range 
50% - 40% 

 
Demand Reduction 

From Stage 1 
Allocation 

20% 

• Declare Stage 2 
• Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
• Intensify public information 

campaign. 
• Optimize existing water resources. 
• Intensify leak detection. 
• Develop appeals staffing. 
• Consult with major customers to 

develop conservation plans and 
water use audits. 

 

• Continue all Stage 1 measures. 
• Landscape watering restricted to two (2) 

watering days per week. 
• Require water audits for large water 

users; implement recommendations of the 
water audits. 

• Businesses display “save water” signage. 
• Increase public information. 
 

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation – response to 
reduced allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 

Stage 3 
 

Supply Range 
40% - 30% 

 
Demand Reduction 

From Stage 1 
Allocation 

30% 

• Declare Stage 3 
• Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
• Expand and intensify public 

information campaign. 
• Provide regular briefings, publish 

monthly consumption report. 
• Hire additional temporary staff in 

customer service, conservation, 
and water distribution.  Water 
waste enforcement. 

• Moratorium on new service 
connections. 

• Continue with Stage 1 and 2 measures. 
• Reduced water allocations. 
• Landscape watering restricted to one (1) 

watering day per week. 
• No landscape changes unless xeriscape. 

 

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation – response to 
reduced allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 

Stage 4 
 

Supply Range 
30% - 25% 

 
Demand Reduction 

From Stage 1 
Allocation 

40% 

• Declare Stage 4 
• Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
• Continue to provide regular media 

briefings. 
• Scale up appeals  
• Open drought information center. 
 

• Continue with Stage 1 through 3 
measures. 

• Reduced water allocations. 
• Landscape watering restricted to one (1) 

watering day per week. 
• Implement restrictive Irrigation delivery 

schedule. 
• Minimal water for large landscapes. 
• Consider prohibition of filling swimming 

pools and fountains. 
• Implement restrictive Irrigation delivery 

schedule and quantities greater than 60%. 
 

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation – response to 
reduced allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 

Stage 5 
 

Supply Range 
25% - 0% 

 
Demand Reduction 

From Stage 1 
Allocation 

50% 

• Declare Stage 5 
• Implement demand reductions for 

each customer classification. 
• Minimize outdoor water use and 

non-essential uses. 
• Implement aggressive public 

outreach and education program. 
• Implement crisis communications 

plan. 
• Coordinate with State and local 

agencies to address enforcement 
challenges. 

• Water Shortage Emergency 
declaration to be considered. 

• Continue with Stage 1 through 4 
measures. 

• Reduced water allocations. 
• Rescind Temporary meters issued. 
• No turf irrigation. 
• Implement restrictive Irrigation delivery 

schedule and quantities greater than 50%. 
 
 

 

• Consider and implement 
Conservation Penalty for 
water use in excess of 
allocation – response to 
reduced allocation. 

 
• Consider rates for 

revenue stabilization and 
cost of service. 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Water Resources Committee 

 
DATE:    March 22, 2016 
TO:       Board of Directors 
FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
Re:    Water Resources Committee Meeting of March 22, 2016, 9:30 AM 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Bill Hicks 
Director Russ Baggerly 

 General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 Resources Manager, Ron Merckling 
  
 Public:  Jim Kentosh, Director for Meiners Oaks Water District  
  

2. Public Comments. 
 Mr. Kentosh expressed that he had learned enough information from last month’s Water 

Resources Committee to assist Meiners Oak Water District in developing their implementation 
of demand reduction measures with a surcharge for over-allocation use by their customers. 

 
3. Board Comments.  None. 

 
4. Manager Comments.  None.  
 
5. Review of Water Efficiency and Allocation Program Implementation. 

The Committee reviewed the changes in allocation and actions that could occur given that 
March did not develop any significant rainfall events that would have changed the local water 
supply status.  The Committee reviewed lake storage trends that could occur if no rainfall or 
inflow occurs in the Ventura River watershed during the lake decline.  Additional work is 
planned to develop a memorandum of understanding for participating resale agencies. 
 
Director Hicks recommended consideration of assisting and/or supporting the City of Ventura’s 
proposed interconnection to Oxnard.  Our understanding is this project is one of several water 
supply projects that the City is planning to implement in the very near future. 
 
The Committee reviewed the key communications and actions that would occur upon a 
change to a Stage 3 condition.  Director Baggerly asked about costs and budgeting to 
implement temporary staffing.  Ron Merckling expressed that he had adequate staffing and 
budget to implement Stage 3.  The action of a moratorium of water service is more complex 
and is to be considered further.   

 



 1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
 

MINUTES 
Recreation Committee 

 
DATE:   April 8, 2016 
TO:        Board of Directors 
FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum 
Re:   Committee Meeting of April 4, 2016 
           
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
BACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW: 

    
1. Roll Call.    

Director Bill Hicks 
Director Jim Word  

 Steve Wickstrum, General Manager  
 Carol Belser, Park Services Manager 
 Public - Dee Bennett, Lake Casitas Rowing Club  
  

2. Public comments.   
Dee Bennett commented that she has been hosting the rowing competitors while training at Lake 
Casitas prior to the 2016 Olympic trials and expressed their appreciation for the opportunity to train 
at Lake Casitas.   
 

3. Board/Management Comments. 
Director Word would like to look into Recreation financing at future committee meetings.   
 
Carol Belser commented on the attendance and law enforcement assistance on Easter Sunday.  
The estimated attendance on Easter Sunday is approximately 25,000.  The presence of both 
Federal and County law enforcement agencies is greatly appreciated. 
 
Carol Belser informed the Committee that it appears that the Quagga Mussel Vulnerability 
Assessment and Control documents are almost ready to be approved by the State.  Casitas has 
received $26,000 in grant funding from Boating and Waterways for the preparation of the reports. 

 
4. Review of the February Recreation Report. 

Reports were reviewed and recommended to move forward to the Board as information. 
 

5. Discussion regarding a request for donation of four Casitas Water Adventure Tickets. 
Carol Belser presented a letter from a private school in Oxnard that requested four tickets to be 
used in a fund raiser for the school.  The Committee expressed support of the donation, noting 
that many of the LCRA customers are coming from Oxnard.  The budget provides $3,000 for such 
donations.  Staff will respond to the request. 
 

6. Review of Incidents and Comments. 
Carol Belser summarized the incidents occurring at the LCRA during February 2016.   
 



1 
 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes 

 
 
DATE:  April 8, 2016 
TO:         Board of Directors 
FROM:  General Manager, Steve Wickstrum 
 
Re:  Executive Committee Meeting of April 8, 2016 
          
RECOMMENDATION: 
It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report. 
 
MEETING:    

 
1. Roll Call.      Directors Peter Kaiser and Russ Baggerly 
   Steve Wickstrum, General Manager 
     
2. Public Comments.  None. 
 
3. Board/Manager comments.    

The General Manager informed the Committee of a notice from the Association of 
California Water Agencies (ACWA) concerning the direction of the State Water Board to 
develop long-term water conservation regulations.  ACWA is requesting involvement by 
ACWA members to weigh in on the State’s regulation developments.  A key concern is 
loss of local control and management of water supplies.  Ron Merckling will be watching 
this carefully and reporting on any action needed by Casitas. 

 
4. Discussion regarding scheduling Board compliance training. 

Rebekah Vieira is scheduling Ethics and Harassment Prevention training for the Board 
and management, and doing so in conjunction with other local agencies.  The Board and 
management will be advised as the schedule is determined. 
  

5. Discussion regarding the County of Ventura’s General Plan Amendment. 
Director Baggerly attend a meeting on April 7th with Planning Commission during which 
he was presented an overview of the General Plan Amendment.  The amendment work 
will be over a five-year period (2016-2021).  The General Manager attended the Water 
focus group meeting where attendees provided initial insight on the assets, issues and 
opportunities for water in Ventura County.  The County will be calling additional meetings 
throughout the amendment period.  The Executive Committee asked that any further 
information regarding the General Plan Amendment be provided to the Water Resources 
Committee. 



 
 

1 

CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT 
LAKE CASITAS RECREATION AREA 

 
DATE:  March 29, 2016  
 
TO:  Recreation Committee  
 
FROM: Carol Belser, Park Services Manager CB 
   
SUBJECT: Recreation Area Monthly Report for February 2016  
 
 
Visitation Numbers 
 
The following is a comparison of visitations* for February 2016:   
 

 February 2016 February 2015 January 2016 
Visitor Days 36,524 21,188 20,152 
Camps 2,992 2,365 1,931 
Cars 9,131 5,297 5,038 
Boats 218 183 104 
Kayaks & Canoes 6 15 7 

 
Fiscal Year to Date Visitation 

2014/2015 332,388 
2015/2016 333,502 
% Change -0.335 

 
*The formulas for calculating the above attendance figures derived from the daily cash reports are as follows:   
Visitor Days = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied +extra vehicles X 4 
Camps = Campsites occupied + extra vehicles 
Cars = Daily vehicles + 30 minute passes X 3 + café passes + attendance at special events + annual vehicle decals + replacement decals + campsites 
occupied + extra vehicles 
Boats = Daily boats + overnight boats + annual decals + replacement decals 
Kayaks & Canoes = Daily kayaks and canoes + overnight kayaks and canoes + annual kayaks and canoes 
 

Boating 
There were four cables sold for new inspections, four vessels were re-inspected and a total of 564 
vessels were retagged.  Eight vessels failed the first inspection in February 2016. With the historic 
drought and receding water levels, the launch ramp conditions are seriously impacted and it is difficult 
to keep the ramp area in use to customers’ satisfaction. Engineering Department staff are looking into 
the possible use of the old Coyote launch ramp and what the costs would be to stabilize the road to the 
ramp and the ramp itself. The road and ramp have been under water for decades and the ground 
beneath the road is extremely soft.          
 
Operations 
The Park Manager continued to work with RNT Consulting and the Department of Fish and Wildlife to 
complete the Control and Management Plan and Vulnerability Assessment for Lake Casitas. The 



 
 

2 

documents are still under review by the Department of Fish and Wildlife. Maintenance personnel 
completed an American Red Cross review course and were recertified in First Aid, CPR and AED.     
 
Incidents  
Incidents in the Recreation Area for the month of February that included assistance from outside 
services: search and rescue for lost hiker and a medical transport.  
 
Revenue Reporting 
The 2015/2016 unaudited monthly figures below available to date illustrate all Lake Casitas Recreation 
Area’s revenue collected in the respective months (operations, concessions, Water Adventure, etc.) per 
the District’s Financial Summary generated by the Finance Manager.    
 

LCRA TOTAL REVENUE 
    

$0.00
$100,000.00
$200,000.00
$300,000.00
$400,000.00
$500,000.00
$600,000.00
$700,000.00
$800,000.00

July
Se

pt
Nov Jan

March May

FY 14/15
FY 15/16

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Consumption Report

Water Sales FY 2015-2016 (Acre-Feet)         Month to Date

2015 / 2016 2014 / 2015

Classification Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total Total

AD Ag-Domestic 422 517 547 509 464 403 22 177 0 0 0 0 3061 2834

AG Ag 298 375 377 353 298 270 31 137 0 0 0 0 2139 2357

C Commercial 58 83 81 60 39 27 9 21 0 0 0 0 378 379

DI Interdepartmental 8 8 8 7 7 5 3 3 0 0 0 0 49 88

F fire 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

I Industrial 1 2 2 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 19

OT Other 17 13 13 13 14 10 3 4 0 0 0 0 87 120

R Residential 106 122 127 103 103 95 50 67 0 0 0 0 773 970

RS - P Resale Pumped 50 81 172 150 131 131 27 34 0 0 0 0 776 767

RS - G Resale Gravity 456 487 453 363 338 422 228 217 0 0 0 0 2964 3317

TE Temporary 6 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 20

Total 1,421 1689 1781 1559 1396 1364 373 660 0 0 0 0 10,243 10,871

Total 2014 / 2015 2286 1972 2317 1506 1187 432 483 688 1410 1283 1483 1601 N/A 16648

** July 2015 was the first month when all customers were on monthly billing.  July 2015 now reflects actual consumption for July.



Casitas Municipal Water District

CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) - Monthly Cost Analysis 

2015 / 2016

4/7/2016

Services Legal Labor Other Total

& Suplies Fees Expense Services Expenses

2011 / 2012 -289.50 42,560.00 11,098.37 0.00 53,368.87

2012 / 2013 831.82 223,462.77 14,836.68 0.00 239,131.27

2013 / 2014 29.89 91,878.06 3,835.65 0.00 95,743.60

2014 / 2015 0.00 68,457.10 0.00 0.00 68,457.10

July 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

August 0.00 1,022.00 0.00 0.00 1,022.00

September 0.00 2,140.00 0.00 0.00 2,140.00

October 0.00 21,424.00 0.00 0.00 21,424.00

November 0.00 24,356.00 0.00 0.00 24,356.00

December 0.00 16,494.00 440.42 0.00 16,934.42

January 0.00 7,112.00 0.00 0.00 7,112.00

Feburary 0.00 37,616.90 0.00 0.00 37,616.90

March 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

April 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

May 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

June 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Cost YTD 0.00 110,164.90 440.42 0.00 110,605.32

Total Project Cost 572.21 536,522.83 30,211.12 0.00 567,306.16

Prepared by dcollin 4/7/2016 Page 1



   CASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

TREASURER'S MONTHLY REPORT OF INVESTMENTS

04/07/16

 

Type of Date of Adjusted Current Rate of Date of % of Days to

Invest Institution CUSIP Maturity Cost Mkt Value Interest Deposit Portfolio Maturity

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EAZM3 7/24/2023 $1,658,682 $1,722,017 2.380% 9/16/2014 8.83% 2627

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFK71 3/9/2026 $854,852 $847,098 2.790% 3/28/2016 4.34% 3572

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFNR4 11/18/2024 $809,098 $801,910 2.870% 11/18/2015 4.11% 3101

Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EFYH4 2/8/2027 $1,016,065 $1,009,460 3.000% 3/24/2016 5.17% 3901

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 33133EFHV2 10/13/2022 $588,434 $581,108 2.200% 10/23/2015 2.98% 2346

*TB Federal Farm CR Bank 3133EED31 4/28/2025 $2,989,039 $2,968,267 2.800% 6/2/2015 15.21% 3261

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313381TA3 1/17/2023 $277,619 $284,088 2.240% 9/8/2014 1.46% 2440

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379EE5 6/14/2019 $1,371,049 $1,373,612 1.625% 10/3/2012 7.04% 1147

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 313379RN1 12/27/2024 $978,364 $995,030 2.840% 6/18/2014 5.10% 3140

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 3130A5R35 6/13/2025 $773,032 $759,373 2.875% 2/19/2016 3.89% 3306

*TB Federal Home Loan Bank 31338OA98 8/14/2024 $126,966 $131,890 2.500% 7/3/2014 0.68% 3007

676633 Federal Home Loan Bank 3133XFKF2 6/11/2021 $675,383 $677,286 5.625% 1/16/2013 3.47% 1864

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G43A4 10/30/2024 $849,441 $885,062 2.500% 7/3/2014 4.54% 3083

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EADB2 1/13/2022 $678,379 $696,928 2.375% 9/8/2014 3.57% 2076

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3134G34R8 7/23/2021 $513,841 $517,119 2.000% 12/2/2014 2.65% 1906

*TB Federal Home Loan MTG Corp 3137EABA60 11/17/2017 $1,059,500 $1,069,230 5.125% 1/3/2012 5.48% 580

*TB Federal National Assn 3136G0K67 4/9/2021 $192,000 $192,701 2.000% 12/2/2014 0.99% 1802

*TB Federal National Assn 3135G0ES80 11/15/2016 $684,804 $686,681 1.375% 3/12/2012 3.52% 218

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828JE10 7/15/2018 $1,146,619 $1,156,794 1.375% 7/6/2010 5.93% 818

*TB US Treasury Inflation Index NTS 912828MF4 1/15/2020 $1,131,390 $1,170,984 1.375% 11/18/2015 6.00% 1358

*TB US Treasury Note 912828WE6 11/15/2023 $768,984 $830,385 2.750% 12/13/2013 4.26% 2738

Accrued Interest $154,898

Total in Gov't Sec. (11-00-1055-00&1065) $19,143,540 $19,511,921 99.98%

Total Certificates of Deposit: (11.13506) $0 $0 0.00%

** LAIF as of:  (11-00-1050-00) N/A $448 $448 0.32% Estimated 0.00%

*** COVI as of: (11-00-1060-00) N/A $2,848 $2,848 0.50% Estimated 0.01%

TOTAL FUNDS INVESTED $19,146,835 $19,515,217 100.00%

Total Funds Invested last report $18,755,801 $18,963,996

Total Funds Invested 1 Yr. Ago $18,176,836 $18,575,662

**** CASH IN BANK (11-00-1000-00) EST. $4,092,667 $4,092,667

CASH IN Western Asset Money Market $343 $343 0.01%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS $23,239,845 $23,608,226

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 1 YR AGO $24,120,494 $24,519,321

*CD CD - Certificate of Deposit

*TB TB - Federal Treasury Bonds or Bills 

** Local Agency Investment Fund 

*** County of Ventura Investment Fund

Estimated interest rate, actual not due at present time.

**** Cash in bank

No investments were made pursuant to subdivision (i) of Section 53601, Section 53601.1 

and subdivision (i) Section 53635 of the Government Code.

All investments were made in accordance with the Treasurer's annual statement of 

investment policy.


	4-13-16 Agenda
	3-23-16 Min
	Minutes of the Casitas Municipal Water District
	Board Meeting Held
	March 23, 2016

	Award Contract Memo Water Playground paving
	Memo for Pump Plant Awnings Project  2016 - Copy
	Bills
	2016 04 07 Memorandum to Board of Directors of CMWD Re Apirl 13, 2016 Resolution (1)
	Memorandum�
	Exhibit A�
	Ltr Purchase Offer to GSW_02-26-16�
	Exhibit B�
	Exhibit C�
	Exhibit D�
	Exhibit E�
	Exhibit F�
	Exhibit G�

	Ltr from G Soneff re April 13 2016 Hearing and Reso of Necessity
	Water Status Report 04 04 2016
	MEMORANDUM

	Water Res Minutes 03 22 2016
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM: General Manager, Steve Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Rec Minutes 04 04 2016
	UCASITAS MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
	UMINUTES
	FROM:   General Manager, Steven E. Wickstrum
	URECOMMENDATION:
	It is recommended that the Board of Directors receive and file this report.
	UBACKGROUND AND OVERVIEW:

	Executive Minutes  04 08 2016
	02Feb.2016 LCRA
	Consumption 2015 - 2016
	CFD No. 2013-1 (Ojai) Monthly Costs 2015-2016
	Investment Report 04-07-16

